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CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS

AT THE SIXTH (6™) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD ON 4t August 2023

Dear Shareholders,

At the outset, please accept my sincere wishes for the good health and safety of you and your
loved ones. | am delighted to welcome you all at the Sixth (6"") Annual General Meeting of
Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL) and present the Audited Statements
for the Financial year 2022-23. | would like to thank each one of you for making it convenient

for joining this meeting.

I would like to place before you, few highlights of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
(IrconDHHL).

IrconDHHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), incorporated
as a Special Purpose Vehicle (‘SPV’) on 11" May 2017, for executing the project work of “Six
- laning of Davanagere-Haveri from Km 260+000 to Km 338+923 of NH-48 (old NH-4) in the
State of Karnataka in accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement (CA), executed
with the National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). The concession period of the project
comprises of construction period of 912 days (30 months) commencing from the Appointed
Date i.e., January 24, 2018 and operation and maintenance period of 15 years commencing

from Commercial Operation Date (COD), with the total project bid cost is 1177 Crore plus



escalation during Construction, Operation & Maintenance (O&M) cost is 10 Crore per annum

with escalation during the entire O&M period.

The Provisional Completion Certificate (PCC) for 71.738 Km out of 78.923 Km of project
highway was issued by Independent Engineer (IE) w.e.f. 28.05.2021 by descoping the balance
work affected due to local hindrances. The revised bid project cost was finalized by the IE for
an amount of ¥949.59 Crore from the original value of 1177 Crore as per the terms of CA for
adjusting milestone payments already made based on the original BPC and for the payment

of Annuities and Interest etc.

A total amount of ¥180.39 Crore (excluding GST) has already been received from the NHAI

towards four Annuities due as per the terms of CA along with the payment for O&M cost.

The descoped works have been rescoped with a Settlement Agreement signed on 25.04.2023
with NHAI with the completion date as 31.10.2024. EPC contractor (lrcon) has started

execution of the balance work.

Financial Performance

During the year, IrconDHHL achieved Total Income of ¥7658.44 Lakhs (including other income
of ¥5683.19 Lakhs and profit/(Loss) after tax for the Financial Year 2022-23 of 32637.04
Lakhs.

IrconDHHL has availed Term Loan facility of ¥502.76 Crore from Punjab National Bank (PNB)
to finance the project.

During the year, out of the total sanctioned Term Loan of ¥502.76 Crore, ¥362.97 Crore has
been disbursed by PNB.

Compliances and Disclosures

Compliance and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and its associated rules there
under are fully being adhered to. CPSE’s constituted as Special Purposed (SPV) are
exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

Hence, Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on your Company.
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-

24, in line with the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department



of Public Enterprises (DPE) dated 10" March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated
07" November, 2022 and 06" February, 2023 has granted exemption to the Company from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 respectively.

Acknowledgements

I, on behalf of Board of Directors, express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and
co-operation extended to the Company by Ministry of Road, Transport & Highways (MoRTH),
National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), Ircon International Limited and the Auditors of
the Company. | acknowledge the efforts of the Company’s employees, who are our most
valuable asset. Their dedication, intellect, hard work, and deep sense of value has been the

key to take our company forward.

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-

Devendra Kumar Sharma

Chairman

DIN: 08556821
Date: 01.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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Dear Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 6" Annual Report together with the
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2023.

1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS:

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon
International Limited (IRCON) incorporated on May 11, 2017 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
with the main object to execute “Six-laning of Davanagere- Haveri from km 260+000 to km
338+923 of NH-48 (old NH- 4) in the State of Karnataka, to be executed as Hybrid Annuity Mode
on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis under NHDP Phase-V” in
accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement, signed with the National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) on June 19, 2017.

The concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 912 days (30 months)
commencing from the Appointed Date i.e. January 24, 2018 (as fixed by NHAI) and operation and
maintenance period of 15 years commencing from COD, with the total project bid cost is 1177
Crore plus escalation excluding Operation & Maintenance (O&M) cost. The scope of work
comprises of six-laning of 78.923 Km (total length of Highway) of existing four lane main
carriageway along with construction of 154.654 Km of service road length including major bridges,

culverts, Vehicular underpasses, pedestrian underpasses, flyovers and other allied works.

The Scheduled date of completion of project was 24.07.2020. NHAI has approved Extension of
Time (EOT) for the Project on account of COVID-19 upto 28.05.2021 and issued Provisional
Completion Certificate (PCC) w.e.f 28.05.2021 with certain punch list items. Accordingly, from the
said date, the project had entered into operation and maintenance phase for the period of 15
years and in order to place an agency to carry out the O&M for initially a period of 2 years through
open tender, O&M work has been awarded to M/s G R Engineers & Contractors, Mathura (U.P.)
w.e.f. 07.10.2021.

Due to hindrances not attributable to the Company, the Authority had descoped the work of 6.88
Km of Main Carriage Way and 49.848 Km of Service Road. On request for rescoping of descoped
work by the Company, NHAI has rescoped the work. A Settlement Agreement for the execution
of balance scope of work has been signed on 25.04.2023 and the work is to be completed within
the execution target of 18 months i.e upto 31.10.2024. Thus, completing the entire scope of work

as envisaged in the Concession Agreement as per Original Bid Project Cost.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23
10



2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

HETTanbl

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the Financial Year
2022-23 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

Financial performance indicators as on 315t March 2023:

(Amount in ¥ In Lakh)

For the Year For the Year
S.No. | Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

1. Equity Share Capital 17,300.00 17,300.00
2. Other Equity (includes Reserves and Surplus) 5029.27 2,392.23
3. Net Worth 22329.27 19,692.23
4, Borrowings (Long term) 34729.61 36,404.65
5. Total Assets and Liabilities 61797.48 61937.06
6. Revenue from Operations 1975.25 797.76
7. Other Income 5683.19 3,773.32
8. Total Income (6) + (7) 7658.44 4,571.08
9. Profit Before Tax (8)-(11) 3471.18 836.90
10. Profit/(Loss) After Tax 2637.04 586.67
11. Balance of Profit/loss for earlier years 1006.23 419.56
12. Balance carried forward 3643.27 1006.23

During the year, IrconDHHL achieved Total Income of ¥7658.44 Lakhs (including other income of
¥5683.19 Lakhs) and profit/(Loss) after tax for the Financial Year 2022-23 of ¥2637.04 Lakhs.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23
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During the FY 2022-23, CARE Ratings Limited has provided AA- (Double A Stable) rating for
the long-term bank facilities of ¥474.5 Crore to your Company.

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE:

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2022-23.

As per the applicability of IND AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the head
‘Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of ¥3643.27 Lakhs in
Retained Earnings as on March 31, 2023.

4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION:

The Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 315 March
2023 is ¥217.05 Crore comprising of 21,70,50,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each and %173 Crore
comprising of 17,30,00,000 Equity Shares of %10/- each, respectively. During the year under
review, there was no change in the share capital of your Company and Ircon International Limited
(IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up share capital of IrconDHHL.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment Rules,
2019 dated 22.01.2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary (WOS) is not required to

get its securities in dematerialised form.

5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT:

The total -Cash Flows from the project activities during the year is 32904.42 Lakh.

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

For the period under review there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies of the
Company.

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

Board of Directors:

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE YEAR 2022-
23

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by the
holding company, IRCON. As on 31.03.2023, total no. of Directors is Four (4) including Chairman
and all the directors are nominated by the Holding Company. During the FY 2023, Company’s

management is headed by the following Non-Executive (Nominee) Directors: -

Category, Name & Designation Appointment or Cessation (during the

year, if any)

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23 1
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Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, | 08556821 | Appointed w.e.f 10.10.2022

Chairman

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 | -

Mr. Rohit Parmar, Director 08190141 | Appointed w.e.f 01.04.2022
Regularized at the 5" AGM held on 23™
August 2022

Ms. Ritu Arora, Director 00002455 | -

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Chairman | 05308809 | Cessation w.e.f. 10.10.2022

Mr. Parag Verma, Director 05272169 | Regularized at the 5" AGM held on
23.08.2022
Cessation w.e.f. 10.10.2022

Mr. B. Mugunthan, Director 08517013 | Appointed w.e.f 01.04.2022

Cessation w.e.f. 01.06.2022

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, Director (DIN: 08556821) was appointed as Additional Part-time
Directors of the Company w.e.f. 10" August 2022, who hold office upto the date of ensuing Annual
General Meeting and his appointment is proposed to be regularized at the ensuing AGM of the

Company and has been included in the notice of ensuing AGM.

The Company has received a notice under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Mr.
Devendra Kumar Sharma giving his candidature for appointment as Directors, liable to retire by

rotation, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year, Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal and Mr. Parag Verma ceased to be Directors of the
Company and the Board placed on record its appreciation for their valuable contribution and

guidance and support given by them during their tenure as Directors of the Company.

Ms. Ritu Arora (DIN 00002455) retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for her re-appointment along with other

required details forms part of the Notice.

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/re-appointed as Director.

Key Managerial Personnel:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the Key Managerial

Personnel (KMP) of the Company during the FY 2023 are as follows:

Designation

Mr. Nagangouda Hanumanthgouda Patil Chief Executive Officer
(Cessation w.e.f. 24.08.2022)

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23 13
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Mr. Goutam Kumar Mishra

Chief Executive Officer

(w.e.f. 24.08.2022)

Mr. Mahadeb Mandal

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Baisoya

Company Secretary
(w.e.f. 12.04.2022)

8. Board Meetings:

During the FY 2022-23, the Board met Six (6) times on 17.05.2022, 04.08.2022, 14.09.2022,
20.09.2022, 03.11.2022 and 31.01.2023. The interval between the Board Meetings was within
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the Board

Meetings is as follows:

Date of The Meeting

Board Strength

No. of Directors Present

17.05.2022

5

5

04.08.2022

14.09.2022

20.09.2022

03.11.2022

31.01.2023

5
5
5
4
4

5
3
4
4
4

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held during
the FY 2022-23 and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Name of Director Meeting Date

Whether
attended last
AGM held on

23.08.2022

Total No. of % of
Meetings Meetings Attenda
held during attended nce
the tenure

17.05.2022

04.08.2022

14.09.2022

20.09.2022

03.11.2022
31.01.2023

(upto 01.06.2022)

Mr. Ashok Kumar VI IvIVvI|VY] -] - v 4 4 100
Goyal (upto

10.10.2022)

Mr. Parag Verma VIivY|x|v|x|x v 4 3 75
(upto 10.10.2022)

Mr. B Mugunthan Vi x| x| x| x| x x 1 1 100

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23
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Mr. DevendraKumar | x | x | x | x | vV | V x 2 2 100
Sharma

(w.e.f. 10.10.2022)

Ms. Ritu Arora Vi iv iV V|V |V v 6 6 100
Mr. Masood Ahmad | v | vV | x | x |V | V v 6 4 67
Mr. Rohit Parmar x | V| V|V |V |V v 5 5 100
(w.e.f 01.06.2022)

9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE:

In terms of notification dated July 5, 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) inter-
alia amending rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary is exempted from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and requirement of constituting of the Board

Committees viz. Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).

IrconDHHL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON, is,
therefore, not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the declaration by

the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)'s OM dated July 8-10, 2014 read with
OM dated July 11, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted
from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence,

Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on IrconDHHL.

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31, 2023 and of

the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23 15
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e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. DIRECTORS’ OBSERVATION AND COMMENTS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need no

further explanation.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any

clarification/explanation.

12. AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditor:

M/s G A C S & Associates, Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory Auditors,
for the Financial Year 2022-23 vide CAG letter No. CA. V/CQY/ Central Government, IDHHL(1)564
dated 31.08.2022. They have confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate as required
under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Auditor:

The Board of Directors had re-appointed M/s. Ravi Sahni & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost
Auditor of the Company for the FY 2022-23 for conducting the audit of cost records maintained

by the Company as per the applicable Rules / Guidance Note, etc.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with the Companies (Cost

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost accounts and records.

Secretarial Auditor:

The Board of Directors had re-appointed M/s. Jayesh Parmar & Associates, Company Secretary,
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2022-23.

Internal Auditor:

The Board of Directors re-appointed M/s Arvind Rattan & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants, as
Internal Auditors for the FY 2022-23, to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company.

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the provisions

of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review.

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23 16
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During the year, the related party transactions with the holding company, IRCON were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms of the Companies
Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are enclosed to this report

as Annexure-1.

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company had

occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

16. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Every company having Net Worth of 500 crore or more or Turnover of 1000 crore or more or
Net Profit of 5 crore or more during the immediately preceding FY is required to spend in every
FY, at least 2% of average net profits of the company made during the three immediately

preceding FY in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy.

Since, the net profit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 was %5.87 Crore
which exceeds the above mentioned threshold limit, therefore, the provisions of CSR under

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was applicable on the Company for the FY 2022-23.

In terms of the provisions of sub-section (9) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
the amount to be spent by a company does not exceed Rs.50 lakhs, the requirement for
constitution of the CSR Committee shall not be applicable on the Company. During the period
under review, the CSR budget of the Company was Rs.6.90 Lakhs. Therefore, the requirement
for constitution of CSR Committee pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was not
applicable to the Company.

During the year, your Company has provided Medical and other necessary equipment’s/
accessories of Rs.6.94 Lakhs (including GST) to Primary Health Centers in Remote Areas in
Karnataka i.e. Aremallapur and Tumminakatti, for the benefits of local public under its CSR
obligations. The Annual report on CSR activities required under the Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out as Annexure-2 forming part of this report.

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule

8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

A. Conservation of enerqgy: -

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23 17
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Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of

particulars is not applicable to the Company.

B. Technology absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of

particulars is not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outqo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the year
2022-23.

18. RISK MANAGEMENT:

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to the

business of the Company.

19. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.

IrconDHHL being a government company is not required to disclose information on the
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the Directors' Report.

20. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year 2022-23.
21. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members

pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

22. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly
maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your Company
continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size

and nature of its business.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23 18
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23. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status

of the Company and its operations in future during the FY 2022-23.

24, COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE
PREFERENCE POLICY

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies registered
under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than ¥500 Crore and all CPSEs shall be
required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables Discounting System (TReDS)
platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India. The Registrar of Companies
(RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such
instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India shall be the
competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance
with the above instruction, the Company has boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 13.12.2019,
to facilitate the financing of trade receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and

realisation of their payment before the due date.

25.DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

During the period under review, there was no complaint pending at the beginning nor any
complaint relating to sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company, being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable on the
Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON will deal with all the complaint, if any,
under POSH Act.

26. VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also provides for
adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. Being a
wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and deputed from IRCON, the
Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available on the website at,

https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23 10
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For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint / reporting under Vigil Mechanism
can be addressed to:

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, Director

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL)

Address: Ircon International Limited,

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017

Phone No.: +917225019446

Email id: dk.sharma@ircon.org

27. RIGHT TO INFORMATION:

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 has been received by the company during
the FY 2022-23, however, RTI application transferred from DPE was duly replied during the FY
2022-23.

28. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has, vide its notification dated 5th June 2015, notified the exemptions
to Government Companies from certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 which inter-alia
provides that Section 134(3)(p) regarding a statement indicating the manner of formal annual
evaluation of Board, shall not apply to Government Companies in case the Directors are
evaluated by the Ministry which is administratively in charge of the Company as per its evaluation

methodology.

Further, the aforesaid circular issued by the MCA has also exempted that sub-sections (2), (3) &
(4) of Sec. 178 regarding the appointment, performance evaluation and remuneration shall not

apply to Directors of Government Companies.

Being a government company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited, all
part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of these
nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line with the

guidelines of the Government of India.

29. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

30. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The “Secretarial Audit Report” from the secretarial auditor in Form MR-3 as required under section
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and is placed as Annexure-3.
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31. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for FY 2022-23 with nil
observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report along with No review certificate
from Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) for the FY 2022-23.

32. APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency &

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

33. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MoU):
Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines
dated 10" March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are

subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MoU with its holding company and holding
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary companies

and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 315 of March of the base year.

In line with the MoU Guidelines of DPE, IRCON vide its letters dated 07" November, 2022 and
06™" February, 2023 has granted exemption to the Company from entering into MoU for the
financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 respectively.

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways, Comptroller and
Auditors General of India (C&AG), Auditors and our valued client- National Highway Authority of

India for their support, and look forward to their continued support in the future.

We thank our Contractors, Sub-contractors, Bankers, for their continued support during the year.
We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all levels.

Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Date: 01.08.2023 of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Place: New Delhi

Sd/-

Devendra Kumar Sharma

Chairman

DIN: 08556821
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ANNEXURE -1

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto for the
financial year 2022-23

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows

Salient terms of the Date(s) of
Nature of contracts Duration of the | Contracts or approval Am_ount
Sr. or arrangements or contracts or | Arrangements or by the paid as
No. transactions arrangements or | Transactions Board. if advances,
transactions including the value, anv: ’ if any:
if any y:
Date: EPC
Agreement
EPC Agreement dated 04.01.2018
(For Appointing Ircon
International Limited | Duration: August 10
as EPC Contractor for | Completion period Consideration: 2021 ’
execution of project |is 30 months from Rs.916.93 ) FebrL’Jary NIL (As on
1. works of “Six Laning | Appointed date or Crc;re ’ lus GST | 202018 & Date)
of Davanagere Haveri | handing over of @12% P No,vember
from km 260+000 to |[land by  the o 9. 2017
km 338+923 of NH- | Company to ’
48(0Ild NH-4 ) in the | IRCON whichever
state of Karnataka” is later. Further,
extended up to
31.10.2024.
o , |Estmates excoutea on oh
ease Agreemen uration:
2 (To take on lease the | 2 years, 7 months Q:g#srteig\jvgegw:?s June 15, NIL (As
| Office Premises of and 15 days 15.05.2021 till | 2021 on Date)
IRCON) (15.05.2021 to 31'03'2023 321236/-
31.03.2023) b m pius GST
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Date: 01.08.2023 Chairman
Place: New Delhi DIN: 08556821

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23
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ANNEXURE -2

Annual Report on CSR & Sustainability
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a company’s commitment to address social, ethical
and environmental concerns in which it operates and contribute to develop a sustainable
society through sustainability initiatives by conducting business in a manner that is beneficial
to both, business and society.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL) is committed to undertake CSR
activities in accordance with provision of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (“CSR Rules”), as amended
time to time and DPE Guidelines, 2014 (hereinafter collectively referred to as “CSR laws”),
with the former taking precedence over the later in case of any conflict.

The Company shall allocate the budget for CSR activities. The minimum budgeted amount
for a financial year shall be 2% of the average net profit (as defined under CSR Rules) of
three immediate preceding financial years. The Company may allocate more fund for the
CSR activities in any financial year than the amount prescribed under the Act.

The Company shall undertake CSR activities as per Schedule VII of the Act through following
three modes of implementation:

(a) Implementation by the Company itself;
(b) Implementation through eligible implementing agencies as prescribed in CSR Rules;
(c) Implementation in collaboration with one or more companies as prescribed in CSR Rules.

If any amount spent in excess of requirement as per sub-section (5) of section 135, such
excess amount may be set off against the requirement to spend under sub-section (5) of
section 135 upto immediate succeeding three financial years subject to the conditions that:

i) the excess amount available for set off shall not include the surplus arising out of the CSR
activities, if any.

ii) the Board shall pass a resolution to that effect.

2. Composition of CSR Committee: As Companyis not required to constitute a CSR
Committee as the CSR expenditure does not exceeding Rs.50 Lakhs.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.: N.A.

4, Provide the execute summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 if applicable.:

Not applicable for this financial year. Further, none of the Completed CSR activities
taken up during FY 2022-23 were Rs.1 crore or above for which impact assessment is
required.

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs.345.42
Lakhs.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23
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(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company asper section 135(5): Rs.6.90
Lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-d)]: Rs.6.90 Lakhs

6. (in Lakhs)
(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Projects and other 6.94
than Ongoing Projects). Details attached as Annexure — 1
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. : Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: 6.94

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(in Lakhs)
Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the
Financial [Total Amount transferred |Amount transerred to any fund specified
Year (in Rs.) to Unspent CSR Account under Schedule VIl as per second proviso
as per sub-section (6) of [to sub-section (5) of section 135.
section 135.
Amount. Date of transfer. [Name of the Fund |Amount [Date of
. transfer.
6.94 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any
SI. No. | Particular Amount
(Rs. in Lakhs)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 6.90
per section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 6.94
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.04
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 0.00
or activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 0.04
years [(iii)-(iv)]

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2022-23
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7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
1
Sl. | Preceding Amount Balance | Amount Amount Amount Defi
No | Financial | transferred | Amount | Spentin | transferred to | remaining | cien
Year(s) to Unspent in the a Fund as to be cy,
CSR Unspent | Financial specified spent in if
Account CSR Year (in under succeedin | any
under sub- | Account Rs.) Schedule VII | g Financial
section (6) under as per Years (in
of section sub- second Rs.)
135 (in section proviso to
Rs.) (6) of sub-section
section (5) of section
135 (in 135, if any
Rs.) Amoun | Dat
t(in e of
Rs.) Tran
sfer
1 2019-20
2 2020-21 Nil
3 2021-22
Nil

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

/7N Yes e No
ST e

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/acquired:- No. of assets has created.

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: N.A.

9.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5).: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Date: of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Place: New Delhi
Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 08556821
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Annexure-3

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANICAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

M/s. IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
Regd. Office: Plot No. C-4, District Centre, Saket

New Delhi-110017

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI
HIGHWAY LIMITED having CIN: U45500DL2017GOI1317401 (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and
Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during
the financial year ended 315 March, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2023
according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India:
Applicability of SS-1 and SS-2;

(1i1) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made

there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment,
External Commercial Borrowings; wherever applicable, if any

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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We report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the financial year under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and/or on shorter notice with the
consent of Directors, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, were captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect
Tax laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been
subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Jayesh Parmar & Associates
Company Secretaries

- PR N

-
|
S runn N
(Proprietor)
Place: New Delhi ACS No.:27055
Date: May 05, 2023 C.P No.:15007

UDIN: A027055E000257661

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure A' and
forms an integral part of this report.
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To

Annexure A

The Members
M/s. IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and

Books of Accounts of the Company.

. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.
For Jayesh Parmar & Associates

AR,

 d -
u
) sk Purma A5 4
(Proprietor)
Place: New Delhi ACS No.:27055
Date: May 05, 2023 C.P No.:15007

UDIN: A027055E000257661
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Ircon International Limited) fEﬂﬂﬂﬂ
CIN: U45500DL2017GOI317401

Shareholding Pattern as on 315t March, 2023

Name of the Company: Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Financial Year: 1%t April, 2022 to 315t March, 2023

The Shareholding pattern of IrconDHHL as on the date of the closure of the financial year
2022-23.

Name of Shareholders Number of Equity % of holding
Shares held (of Rs.10
each)
Ircon International Limited 172,999,200 99.99
(Holding Company)
Masood Ahmad* 200 Negligible
Devendra Kumar Sharma* 100 Negligible
Surender singh* 100 Negligible
Ritu Arora* 100 Negligible
Parag Verma* 100 Negligible
Subhash Chand* 100 Negligible
Mugunthan Boju Gowda* 100 Negligible
Total 173,000,000 100%

*Nominee Shareholders holding shares for and on behalf of Ircon International Limited

Regd. Office: C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-110017, India
Phone No.: - 011-29565666, Fax No.: - 011-26522000

e-mail id: ircondhhl@gmail.com
29
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED,
€ =4, District Centra,

Saket, Naw Delhi [IN] - 110 017

Repart on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statement

We haver awdited the accompanying Standalone Financlal Statements of IRCON DAVANAGERE
HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED [*the Company”] which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the period then ended and Motes 1o the Financial Statements including a
summary of significant accounting policles and other explonatory Information [herein alter
referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”

Opinlon

In owr opinton and (o the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2003 (“the Act”™) In the manner 5o required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indien Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and atber
actounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as al
March 31, 2023, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in eguity and [ts cash
flows fior the perlod ended on the date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in atcordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAc] specified under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our
responsihilities wnder those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financlal Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics issuad by the Institube of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICA} togather with the independence reguirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAPs Code of Ethics, We believe that the
awditl evidence ahtained by us is suffickent and appropriate to prodide a basks for owr audit
opinicn an the finencial statements,

Ky Audit Matiers

- Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionsd judgment, were of mos
o, sipnilicance in our audis of the Standalane Financial Statements of the current period. These
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matters were addresced in the context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as
a whobe, and In farming our apinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate spinlon an
these matters.

Wi hawe determined the matter(s) described below to be the key audit matiers to be
communicated in our report,

o e Audit Matter How our audit addressed the matter r
Revenue Recognition in terms of Ind AS Dur audit proceduras included considering
F— tF. W the appropriateness of the Company's

Customers” revenus recognition accounling policias

The Company recognizes revenue for a and assessing compliance with the policies

performance obligation satisfied over time | I terms of the applicable accounting

after estimating its progress towards standards.

campbete satisfaction of the performance

obligation. The recognition of revenue We performad following substantie

requires assessmients and Judgments to be procedures:

made on changes in work scope (de- » Fead, analyred and identified the distingt

scoping, re-scopingl, claims (compensation, | performance obligations in the contract.

rebates ote.) and ather payments to the = Compared the performance obdigathons

extent performance obiligatéon is satisfiad, with that identified and recorded by the

The company measuras the performance Campany.

obllgation by apphing Input method. = Checked whether the performance
ohligation is being satisfied over the periad

During order flfillment, contractual ol thma of b 3 poinl in time.

obligations may need to be reassessed, In = Performed analytical procedures for

addition, change orders or cancelations reasonableness of revenues disclosed,

have to be considered., As a result, total
estirmated project costs may exceed total
contract revenwes and therefore reguine
immediate recognition of the expected loss.

ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise
[idgement, taking inta consideration all of
the relevant facts and cireumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts
with their customers,

Further, the explanation why we consider
this a5 a Key Audit Matter is a5 followes:

The application af the revenue accoumnting
standard Impolves ceriain key judgements
relatinge o kdentification of distinct
performance obligations, determination
of transaction price of the identified
parformance obligations, the
appropristenesss of the basis used to
measure revenue recognized at a point in
time or over time, Additionally, revenue

| accounting standard cantaing disclosures
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which Invabres collation af information in
respect of disaggregated revenus and
pericds aver which the remaining
performance obligations will be satisfied
subsequent to the balance shest date.

For details refer Nate 23 to the Standalone
Ind A% Financial Stataments.

—

Other Matter

The linancial statements of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERT HIGHWAY LIMITED for the year
ended March 31, 2027 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmaodified
afimion on those statements.

Infoemation Other than the Standalone Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is respansible for the preparation of the ather infermaticn.
The other Information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report
bart does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's repart thereon,
Dur opdnkon on the standalone financial statements does not cover the ather information and
wie di not express any form ol assurance conclusion therean.

in connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsiblity is to
riead the other information and, In deoing so, consider whether the other information s
miaterially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or cthenwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
hawve performead, we canclude that there is a material misstatermeant of this other information,
whe are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard,

Resporsibifities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Stamdalone Financial
Stalements

The Compaiy’s Board of Directors it respansible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act"} with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the
sroounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards
specified under secthon 133 of the Act read with the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards)
Rudes, 20015, as pmendad from time to Lme,

This responsibility also inclpdes maintienance of sdequate accounting records In accordanco
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and prasentation of the financial stotements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
ar EeroT,
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In préeparing the financial stetements, management s responsible lor assessing the
Company's abllity te continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and wsing the going concern basis of accouwnting unkess management either
intends ta liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alterative but to
do s, The Board of Directors BB also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit af the Standolone Financinl Ststements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonabile Gssurance abaut whether the inancial statements as
a whole are free frem material misstatemaent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issiee an
auditar's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatamant whan it exisis, Misstalemenis ean arise from fraud of eror and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggrégate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an avdit in aceordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skeplicicm throughout the audit, We alsa;

v bdentify and assess the risks of materal misstatement of the Ginancial statements, whather
due to traud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
abtain audit evidence that is sufficlant and approgriate to provide & basis for our openion,
Thie risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting froam fraud is higher than (o
ane resufting from armar, a5 fraud may invelve callusion, fafgery, intentional omiscions,
misrepredentations, or the override of internal control,

o Dbtain an undecsianding af internal contral relevant to the audit in order to dissign audit
procedures that ame appropriate in the circumstances, Under section143(3)i of the
Companles Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinken on whether the
company has adeqguate internal financial eantrals system n place and the aperating
effectivencss of such controls,

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonablensss of
actownting astimates and related disclosures made by managemant,

v Conclude on the appropristeness of managerment’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertadnty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubit on the Company’s
abdlity to continue as a gomg concern. Il we conclude that a materinl uncertalnty exists,
wiee are reciieed bo drank attention in owr auditor’s report (o the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur
conclusions are hased an the audll evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concerm.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in & manner that achieves falr presentation,

= Watariality is the magnilude of misstatements In the Standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes It probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider guantitative materlality and qualitative factors In [i} planning the scope of our
audit woark and In evaluating the results of our work; and [ii) to evaluate the effect of any
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identified misstatemenis in the fingncial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and sgnificant audit findings, including any
sipnificant defickentles In internal contral that vwe identily during our audiz,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comiplied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and whera applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describse
thiese matbers in our auditor's repart unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extrernely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should ot be cammunicated in ouf repart because the adverse consequences of dalng
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Report on Other Legad and Regulatory Requirements

1

As required by the Companles [Auditor's ReportjOader, 2020 (*the Order”), Bsued by the
CentralGovernment af India in terms of sub-section (11)of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 20 3, we give in the Annesture A, a staterment on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, tothe cxtent applicable.

As required by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report thai:

3. We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belicf were necassany forthe purposes of our audit.

b. Inour apinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Campany so far a2 it appears from our examination of those books.

. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss [including Other
Comprehensive Income], and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change
in Ecpuity dealt seith by this Report are In agreemeant with the books of account,

d. Insuropinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2004,

g, Being a government company, provision of section 164{2) of the Act are not

applicable pursuant o the notification No. G.5.R.463(E) dated Sth June 2015, isswed
by the Central Government of India.

f. With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separabe Report in “Annesure B,

g. Belng a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not applicable
vide notification no, GSR 403 (E] dated Sth June 2015, issued by the Central
Government of India,

h. With respect to the other matters to be incleded in the Auditer's Report in
accordance with Bule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as
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amended, in our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and accordinmg po the
explamnations ghen to us;

i,

Wl

The Company does not have any pending lidgations which would have a
material Impact on its financlal position,

Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts that may require any provisionlng,
subject to the issue of levy of penalty of s 7.06 crore by MHAI during financial
year 2009-20 on sccount of recovery of damages in confarmity with the
Agreement clause 12.4.2 which is vet to be settled. Company has withheld
simidar amount of IRCON International Lid, being the EPC Contractor. The
Company did not have any derfvative conatracts fer which there wene any
material foreseeable losses.

There were ne amolnts which were required to be transferred, to the Investar
Education and Protection Fund by the Comparny

{a] The Manzgement has represented that, 1o the best of s knowledge and
belief, no funds fwhich are material gither individually or in the aggregate ) hawve
been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sowrces or kind of funds) by the Company to or namy
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries®), with the
wnderstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or imvest in other
persons of entities identified in any manner whatsoesver by aron behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Benaficiaries™) or provide any guarantes, security or the
Hie on behalf of the Litimate Beneficiariog;

{b) The Management has represented, that, 1o the best of its knowledge and
baliaf, no funds (which are material sither indwidually ar in the aggregate ) have
been recelved by the Company from amy person or entity, Including foraign
entity ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly ar indirectly, lend or
Ireest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on Behall of the Funding Party (“Uitimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantes, security o the ke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

() Bazed on the audit procedures that have been censidered reasonabbe and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us bo believe that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (i) of
Rube 11(e), as provided wunder [a) ond (b) above, contain any material
misstalEment,

. The Company has not proposed, declared or pakd any final or interim dividend

during the period and until the date of this report, therefore, the reperting
under clause is not applicable,

The Management has represented, that, the Company has used SAP
accounting saftware for maintain its books of accounts which has a feature of

recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has been operated through
ouft the wear for all ransactions recorded in the software and the audit trail
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feature has not been tempered with and the audit tradl has been preserved by
the comipany as per statutory reguirements for recard relention,

3. As required by Section 143[5) of the Act and as per directions issued by Comptraller

pnd Auditor General of India, we report thats

5.Mo | Direction

Auditor's Replies

1. Whather the company has system in
plice to process all the accounting
transactiong throuwgh IT system? IF yes,
the Implications of processing of
accounting  transactions outside [T
sysiem an the Integrity of the accounts
abong with the financial implicatbens, if
any, may be stated,

Comgany |s using SAP system to
process all the accounting
transactions. As per the information
and explanation prosvided to us no
accounting transactions have been
procested sulside the IT System
excapt Income billing for which no
financial implication were observed,

3 Whether thera is any restructuring af
an ayisting koan or cases of
walverfwrite off of debts / loans /
nterest etc, made by a lender to the
company due to the company’s
Inahility to repay the loan® If yex, the
financial impact may be stated,
\Wihether such cases are properly
accounted for? {in case, kender isa
Gowernment company, then this
direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of lender compary)

Ma; Company is having no case of any
restructuring of an existing loan or
cases  of  waiverfwrite off of
debts/loansfinterest ote, made by o
lender to the compamny due to the
compary's inability to repay the koan.

ER Whether funds [grantsfsubsidy ete)
recoived/recetvable for  specific
schermes from Central/fState
Government or s agencies  were
properly accounted forfutilized as per
its term and conditions? List the cases
of daviation

According 1o the information and
explanathon given to us and as per
our examination of records, no funds
have been receivedfreceivable for
amy  spegific schome  from
Contral/State  Government or its
agencies during the period from 19
April 2021 to 31% March 2023,

For G & C 58 ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

“ladd
L4 i/,

| CA, SHASHI GUPT

PARTMER

M, Mo, : BE4110

UDIN  : 23084110BGYORVI 142
Place : New Delhi

Date : May 12, 2023
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M ‘A" TO THE INDE R T

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sectionof our
report to the Members of Ircen Davanagere Haver Highway Limited of even dote)

T the best of our information and according to the cxplanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and recards examined by us in the normal course of audiy, we state that:

I, In respect of Company’s Fixed Assots:

iap Thie company is maintaiming proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative detalls and
situation af fixed assers

{h) The company Is nat having any Intanglble assets; hence this clause is not applicalle,

¢} According ta the information and explanations given 1o us, the Floed Assets have been physically
verified by the management in a phased manner ot reasonable intervals, and no materfal
discrepancies were noticed on such verification, Further, there s a regular program of verification,
which in our opdnion, s reasanable having regard (o the size aof the company and nature of its business

(il The company does ot own any immovable properties during the period of audit,

e} The Company has nol revalued its Property, Pant and Eguipment (incheding right of use of assets)
of intengide asset of bath during the financial year;

i} According to Infarmation and explanations given 1o us, no proceedings have been initlated o
pending against company for halding any benami property under the Benami Transactbons
{PFrohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and miles made thereundar during the year

il Inrespoct of Inventorios:
The Company does not have any inventory and has no working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 Crores
in aggregate at any points of time during the period, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
af security of current assets and henoe reporting under clause 3(il) of the Crder is not applicable,

i,  Acocording to information and explanations given 1o us by the management and records produced
befare us, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantes or security, granted
any loan or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships, and any other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013, during the period, Henee reparting under Paragraph 3{iii) of the order is
nok applicable to the Company.

. In our apinion and according to information and explanations given to us by the management and
records produced before us, the Compary has not granted |loans or provided any guarantees or given
amy security of made any investment 1o which the provisions of section 1B5 and 186 of the
Companies Act 2003 are attracted. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not applcable to the
Company.

W In o opinion and according to information and explanations given to us by the management and
records produced before us, the Company has not aceepted any depaosit or amaunits which are deemed
to be deposits. Hence,reporting under clavse 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

v  The Company has maintained cost records as required under section 148{1) of the Companies Act,
2013. However, we are neither required to carry out, nor have carried out any detalled examination
of sich accounts and reconds.

vil.  Inrespect of statutory dues:
{a) According to the information and explanation given to us, and as per examination of records of

the Company, in our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, inchiding Goods and Sendces tax, Provident Fund, Emplovees’ Sate Insurance,
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Income Tax, Sales Tax, Sennoe Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Vialue Added Tax, Cess and
other material statulory dues applicable with the approgeiate authorities,

(b} According to the information and explanation given ta us, and as per examination of records of
the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees” State Insurance, income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, dubyef Custom, duty of
Eycise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payahble.

ich According to the information and explanation given toous, and 35 per examination of records of
the Company, there s no amount payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess, which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of amy
disputes.

According to the infermation and explanation given to us, and as per examination of records of the
Company, in aur ogénion, there were no transactions relating to previously smrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961),

{a} Baged on our review of accounts and as per information provided, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of beans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon during the year
under audit.

(h) The Company has not been declared wilthul defaulier by any bank o financisd instltution or
government or any government autherity.

(e} According bo the infarmation and explanation given ta us, the Campany has applled term loan for
the purpose for which loans wese obtained.

(i) Aceording o the information and explanation gaen Lo us, funds raised an shart- term basis, have
mat Been used during the period for lopg-term purposes by the Com pany.

i) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not taken any funds
fram any entity of person on account of of {8 meet the sbligations of Hs subsidiaries, associates
ar joing ventunes.,

{f) Accarding tothe infarmation and explanation ghwen 1o us, the company has nat raised loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held bn subsidiaries, beint Ventures and associate companies
hence reporting on clause 3{ixif) of the Order Is not applicablia,

{1} The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or Further public effer (including
dabi instruments] during the pariod and hence reporting under clause 3(x] {a) of the  Dnder is not
applicable,

ik} During the period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clivase
3{x]{5) of the Order is not applicable,

{z) According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material
frawsd on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period,

= () Mo report under sulr-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
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will,
i,

4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies [Audit and Auditors] Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the peripd and upto the date of this report,

fc} No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the period [and upto the date of
this report], while determining the natire, timing and extent of our audit procedures,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clawse (xi) of the Order is not
applicable,

According v the information and explanation ghven to us, and based on owr examination of records
of the Company, the Company & in compilance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the detalls of related party
transactions have bean disclased in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

{aj In our oplnian the Company has an adeguate intemal auditl spstem commensurate with the  size
and the nature of ks business.

(b} We hawe considered, the [ntemal sudit regarts for the period under aedit, Bsued to the Company
during the period and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of owr auds
procedures,

According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination of recosds of
the Company, during the period the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company,

{a} In our opineon, the Company it not requinsd to be reglstered ender section 4514 of the Repsrye
Bank of India fct, 1934, Henee, reporting under clawse 20od) (a), (b} and (e) of the Order is not
applicable,

{b) In our opevon, there & me oofe ovestrment compisny within the Group (& defined in the Core
Inwestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directlons, 2006) and accordingly reporting under clause
3wl (] of the Oeder is not applicable.

The Company has not incumred cash bosses during the perod covered by our audit,
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the period,

O the basis of the financial rathos, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payrment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowdedge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the asumptions, nothing has come o our attention, which cawses us to belleve
that-any material uncertadnty exists as on the date of the audit report Indicating that Company b not
capable of meeting its liahilities existing at the date of batance shoet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the batance sheet date, \We, however, state that this Is not an asseranie a3
to the future viability of the Company, We further skate that our reporting is based on the facts up o
the date of the audit report and we neither ghve any guarantes nor ary asurance that all labiites
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Comparny as and when they fall due.

{#) Tharre b5 no unspent amonts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
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projects for reguiring a transfer to a fund specified in schedule VI to the companies Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordinghy
reporting under clause [} a) of the order is not appBcable for the period.

b There s no amaunt incurfed towards Corporate Soclal Responsibility {C5R) on ongeing projects
frwr the per|od.

wi,  The Company does not have Investmient In subsidiaries, asseciates of joint ventures and therefore,
company has not prepared consolidated financlal statements. Accardingly reporting under clatise
Apexll aff the ardes i not applicable,

ForGACSE TES
CHARTER COUNTANTS
FRM: 005198N

ks
[ CA. SHASHI EUPTA/
PARTHER

M. Mo, : DE4110

UDIN : 23084110BGYOBVE142
Place : New Dedhl

Date  : May 12, 2023
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Annexure 8" to the Independent mw_ummmmmm:w
Staterments of Ircen Devanag 1 I e arch, 20

Repart on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act™)

We have audited the infermal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON DAVANAGERE
HAVER| HIGHWAY LIMITED |"the Company™ as of March 31st 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is respansible for establishing and maintaining internal financial contrals
based on, “the internal contral over financial reporting critera established by the Company
considering the assentlad components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Adsdit of
internal Financiad Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Instiute of Chartered Acoountants
of India [ICAI", These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating offectively for ensuring the ordery and
effictent conduct of 15 business including adherence to company's policies, the saleguarding of its
assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the acournoy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility |s o exprass an opinion on the Comparny®s internal financial controls over financial
reparting based on our audit, We conducted cur audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting {the "Guidance Note") and the Standards an
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal inancial contrals, both isswed by the institute of Chatered Accouniants of India.
Those Standyrds and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to cbisin regsonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial
controls over financlal reporting was estabdished and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.,

O aedit invabees performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial contrals system over financiad reporting and their operating effectivenass. Our audit of
internal financial contrals over financlal reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness af internal contral based an the assessod
risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, induding the assessmeant of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud o error.

We beliewe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basds
for aur audit opinion oo the Company's Internal financlial controls system over financial reporting.

mMeaning of Internal Financlal Conirals Over Financial Reporting

A company’s Internal financial control over financial reporting i a process designed to provide
asonable assurance regarding the reliability of financisl reparting and the preparation of financial
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statemients for external purpodes in actordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s intermal fimancial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that [1) pertadn to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2] provide reasonable assurance that
trangactions afe recorded a5 necessany to permit preparation of financlal statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the compary are
being made anly in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
{3} provide reasonable acdisranee regarding prevention or Himely detection of unauthorized
acquisithon, use, or dispostion of the company’s assets that condd have a material offect on the
financial statemeants.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of control, material misstatements due o
efror of fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting bo future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes In conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Oipindon

In ouir opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanateons given to us, thi
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reparting and such internal linancial controls aver financial reporting wierne operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, “based on the internal cantrol over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal contral stated in the Guidance Mote on
Audlt of Internal Financial Controls Over Financtal Reporting [Bsued by the instiiute of Chartered
Accolniants of India®.

ForGACS & IATES
CHARTERED ACCOLUNTANTS

[CA smé?rg{ﬁ .

FARTNER
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Trcom Davanagers Haveri Highway Limited
Motes (o Mnancial statements for the vear ended Mareh 51, 20235,

1. Corporate Information

Ireon Davanagere Haven Highway Limited (IDHHL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon Intemational
Limited domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in
Indin. The company came into existence when, [rcon International Limited has been awarded the work of
Six-Laning of Davanagere — Haveri from km 2604000 to km 338+923 of NH-48 (Old NH-4) in the state
of Kamataka to be executed as Hybrid Annuity Project on DBOT Annuity Pattern under NHDP Phase -
Vin accordance with the terms and conditions in the agreement with Mational Highway Awthority of India
(NHAT) dated 19-06-2017. In pursuant to the provisions of ‘Request for Proposal’, the selected bidder
‘Ircon International Limited® has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Davanagere
Haveri Highway Limited (1DHHL) as wholly owned subsidiary and incorporated under Compamies Act,
2013 on 11th May 2017. Accordingly, SPV has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 15th
Jume 201 7. In termzs of the said agreement, IDHHL has an obligation to complete construction of the project
of Six laning of Davanagere Haveri section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition
including all projects assets whose lives have expired. Total Project cost is Rs 1177 crore (i.e. Bid Project
cost). 40% of the Bid Project cost, adjusted for Price Index Multiple, shall and due and payable to the
Concessionaire (IDHHL) in 5 equal instalments of 8% each during the construction period. The remaining
Bid Project cost, adjusted for Price Index Multiple, shall be due and pavable in 30 biannual instalmenis
commencing from the | 80th day of COD in accordance with the Provisions of clause 23.6 of the agreement
which is Annuity payments during Operation Period. The Project is under Annuity pattern and will be
under operation with the IDHHL for 15 years from the Commercial Operational Date (COD). The
payments of the same, under Annuity model will be payable at the achievement of specific milestone as
per the agreement.

NHAI vide its letter dated 19-07-2021 has de-scoped the work on main carriageway of 6.880 Kms, service
road for a length of 49848 Kms and project facilities (14 Wos. of Bus bays and Bus Shelters,2 Nos. of
Truck Lay Byes and 1 Rest Area) . Accordingly, company has received Provisional Completion certificate
with effect from Mayv 28, 202 | However, NHAI vide its letter dated 16.11.2022 has Re-scoped the balance
work which was De-scoped earlier.

The registered office of the company located st C-d, District Centre, Saket, and New Delhi - 110017,
The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in financial
statements are presented in lakhs, by rounding ofl upto two decimals except for per share data and as
otherwise stated.

The standalone Mnancial stalements are approved for issue by the company’s Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 12.05.2023.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section |33
of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to tome) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 11 1o
the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 11T}, as applicable 1o the financial statements,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting. The Company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and liabilities, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

. Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured af present value
Centain Ninancial assets and liabilitics measured at fair value
Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits
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lrcon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Motes o financial statements for (he year ended March 31, 2023,

21 Summary of significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the fMinancial siatements
are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
the financial siatemenis,

2.2.1 Current vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and habilities in the balance sheet based on current/ nen-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

»  Expected to be realized or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating eycle

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o  Cazh or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for ol

least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current when:
* iz expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
* |t is held primarily for the purpose of trading
# |t is due to be settied within twelve months afier the reporting period, or
¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months
afier the reporling period

The Company classifies all other liabilities &5 non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and labilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cvcle.

2.2.2 Property, plant and equipment
Recogniti [ Initical M

Property, plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefils
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of each item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment are initially sinted af their cost.

Cost of asset includes

a) Purchase price, net of any trade dizscount and rebates

b} Bormowing cost if capitalization criteria is met’

¢) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset to its
working condition for the intended uwse

d) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the indirect
construction cost 1o the extent the expenditure is directly related o construction or is incidental

thereto.
e) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site

on which it is located if recognition criteria ane my

Freehold land is carried at historical cost,




Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Motes to Minancial statements for the year ended March 3, 20235,

SehRE AT BRI R

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and cost of
the expenditure can be measured reliably.

Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of signilicant parts and borrowing costs for long-term
constroction projects are capitalized il the recognition eriteria are met,

The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met.
Depreciation and wseful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land and leaseheld land acquired
on perpetual lease is provided on straight line basis ever the estimated useful lives of the assets as
specified in schedule 1l of the Companies act, 2013

However, in case of cerain class of assels;, the Company uses different useful life than those
prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life has been assessed based on
technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of those classes of assets, the estimated usage of
the asset on the basis of the management’s best estimation of getting economic benefits from the
asset. The estimated useful life as per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule Il of the Com penies
Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the notes to accounts.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the period is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up 1o the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of pan is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that pant is different from the
useful life of remaining asset. Leaschold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to Rs. 5000/~ are
fully depreciated, by keeping Re. | as token value for identification, However, Mobile phones
provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and loss imespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. “Ordinarily, the residual value of an asset is up to 5% of the
original cost of the asset” as specified in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net dispasal
proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when

the asset is derecognized.

1.2.3 Capital work in progress




Ircon Davanagere Hoveri Highway Limited
Motes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023,

214

225

Capital work-in-progress représents expenditure incumed in respect of capital projects and are carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Invesiment propertics

Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the property will flow to the company and the cost of property can be measured reliably, Investment
property comprises completed property, property under construction and property held under a lease
that 15 held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary
course of business or for use in production or administrative functions. Investment propertics are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other consideration given to
acquire an assel at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount
attributed 1o that asset when initially recogmized in accordance with the specific requirements of other
Ind AS.

Sebrequrent measirement avd depreciotion

Investment properties are stated at cost less aceumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Subsequent cost is added if recognition criteria is met. The Company depreciates building component
of investment property on straight line basis over 60 years from the date of original purchase/
completion of construction. Freehold land and property under construction is not depreciated.

Leasehold land au:quirr.::l on perpetual lease 15 not amortzed.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment property are reviewed al
cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined based on an annual evaluation

performed by an accredited external independent wvalver applving valuation model sccepiable
internationally.

LiE
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Imtangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition al cost. The cost com prises
purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attnibutable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected
in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets
not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets

underdevelopment™ i ﬁﬁ@-_‘a
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Ireon Davanagere Haverd Highway Limited
Motes (o financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023,

2.2.6

2:2.7

b : —

Following imitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, Software cost up to Rs. | Lakhs in each case is fully amontized
in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. 1 as token value for identification,

The cost of capitalized software 1s amortized over a period 36 months from the date of its acquisition,
Amaortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is charged on pro-
rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach reporting period and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Lerecopnition
An intangible aszel shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses anising from de-recognition of an intangible asset

are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. IT any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not gencrate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assel is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventorics
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.
[T such indication exisis, the Company estimates the asset’s or OGU™s recoverable amouni. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions

used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss,

Inventories

a) Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurved in bringing the inventories o their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out (FIFO) basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Ircon Davanagere Haverl Highway Limited
Mobes to financial statements For the vear ended Mareh 31, 2023,

b} Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot be
ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter.

€) The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction
work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of profit and loss of
the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the contract as al
the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not written of valued a
ost.

d] In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores nol reimbursable as per
the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above.

¢) Loose wools are expensed in the period of purchase.
1.2.8 Revenue recognition

Service concession arrangement

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditronal contractual right
to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor (“WNHAI™) for the
construction services and Operation & Maintenance services).

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value i.e. present value and subscquently at amortized
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Under this method, financial asset will be increased

For the financing element and reduced as and when money is received from grantor

- ue from Contracts with Customers
The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction and Operation & Maintenance
services) in accordance with fnd A5 -1 f7“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Company combine the two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same customer
and account for the contracts as a single contract if contracts are negotiated as a package with a single
commercial objective or amount of consideration to be paid in one contract depends on the price or
performance of the other contract or goods or services promised in the contracis are single performance
abligation.

Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing compoment] is the price which is contractually
agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is
allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounis collecied on behalf of third partiesi.c
GST and is adjusted for variable considerations

The nature of Company’s contract gives rise 1o several types of variable consideration inchsding
escalation and hiquidated damages.

Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated 1o the performance obligations in the
contract on the same basis as at contract inception

The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal

__in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company estimates thcfjgnmi of
Fid Ty
to be recognized on varizble consideration using most likely amount method. FaoLa .-.j} A
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Ireon Davanagere Haverd Highway Limited
Motes to linancial statements for the yvear ended Mareh 31, 1023,

Consequently, amounts allocated to a satished performance obligation are recognized as revenue, oras a
reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.

The company satisfics a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any of the
following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benelits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity peirform

k) The entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or

c) The entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to daie.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the
progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation.
The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated
cost attributable 1o the performance obligation. However, whene the Company is not be able 1o reasonably
measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the costs incurred
in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognise revenue only to the extent of the costs
incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation. A
Cumulative catch up adjustment would be recognized in the period in which entity is able to reasonably
MeASUre s progress.

Performance obligation is measured by applyving input method. In the contracts where performance
ohligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied, which faithfully depict the
Company’s performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation,

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract 5cope or contract price.

The accounting for modifications of contracts involves asscssing whether the services added to the
existing contract are distingt and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added
that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are
accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new contract if not

priced at the standalone selling price.

Contract balances

Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the eamed

consideration that is conditional

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is
ungonditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer
=== 1o accounting policies of financial assets in section (XX) Financial instruments - initial recognition and
0527 subsequent measurement.
'._.lll'u
W&tm’(r&ﬂ liabilities A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
A Swhich the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consi ,H_..h due) from the customer.
" If & customer pays consideration before the Company transfers fois o Seeikes Lo the customer, a

“r‘l

s

o) A

54



Ireon Davanagere Haverl Highway Limbled
Notes (o financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023,

contract liability is recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Coatract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and right to receive the
income is established as per terms of contract.

2.2.9 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs congist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences 1o the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the homowing costs.

2.2 10Taxes
a) Corrent income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected 1o be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is
determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the peried and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax is recognized in statement of profil and
loss except 1o the extent it relates to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is
recognized owside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in DCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returng with respect (o siluations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

b} Deferved Tax

Deferred tax 15 provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is scttled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
recognised oulside profit or Iuss. in which case is remguised oulside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in mnehl.mn o the
= underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
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The carrving amount of deferred tax asseis is reviewed at each reporiing date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the defenred tax asset 0 be ulilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed atl each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax asscts and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxafion authority,

2.2.11Forcign currencies

*  Functional and presentation currency

l[tems ncluded n the Dnmancial statements are measured using the cummency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates [“the functional currency™), The Ainancial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency

of the Company.

#  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange
rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional
currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilitics and closing buying rate for
assets). Mon-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical
cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date,
at rates different from those al which they were initially recorded, are recognieed i the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in
the statement of profit and loss on net hasis.

2.1  Emplovee benefit
a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related
Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as shot-
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement
of profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

b} Post-employment benefits and Other Long term Employee Benefits

The Post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon
International Limited, the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the

Holding Company.

1.1 I.!if.'mh and cash :quwnl:nta

include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with nrrym)ﬁ
.-" ﬁy“ '1
=

r| _'..'I _.rnr
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2214

2215
a)

b)

maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral pant of the Company’s
cash management.

Drividend

Annual Dividend distribution to the Company's equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the
period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as
lizhility on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend
distribution, if any, is recognized directly in equity.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reposting period, considering the risk and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation,

IT the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a currént pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Onerous coniracls

An onerouws contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (e, the costs that the
Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected 1o be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a
contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost af
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. If the Company has a
contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a scparate provision for an onerous contract is established, the

Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

These estimates are reviewed ot epch reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
eslimates.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that
may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefils or Lhe
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remaote, no provision or disclosure is made.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 1o reflect the current best estimates.

L
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. lease linbilities is re-measured if there is a modification, & change in the lease term, a change in the

d) Contingent asscts

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits
is probable,

1216 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

a) Company as a lessce

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease habilities 1o make

lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i1 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets af the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulaled
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any ro-measurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of lease labilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date lesz any lease inceniives
received. Right-of-use assets are deprociated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the cstimated wselul lives of the asscts.

Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

IT ownership of the leased asset ransfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is caleulated using the estimated useful life of

the assel.

The right-of-use assets are also subject 1o impaimment.

i} Lease linbilitics

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments {including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option io terminate, Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred 1o produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rale
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. Afier the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of

se payments (e.g., changes to fulure payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
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determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlving
assel

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities
ity Short term lease and leases of low value asscts

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemplion to its shorl-term leases contracts
incloding lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of |2
manths or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered
to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b} Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income, Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earmed.

LXL17  Finaneial instrumenis

A financial imstrument 15 any contract that gives rise to a Minancial assetl of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

itial i :

All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair valuve plus or minus transaction cost that arne
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attnibutable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent imeasurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

o  Debt instroments @t am sl

A “debt instrument” is measurcd at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPL) on the principal amount outstanding.

Afler initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amaortised cost is c:lculal:d by taking info
account any discount or pmrn:urn o anqumtlnn am:l fees or costs lh 1l -integral pant of the

1 e losses arising

59



Ireon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Motes to linancial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025,

from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies 1o trade
and ather receivables,

e« Debt instruments at FYTOCT

A “debt instrument’ is classificd as at the FVTOCI if both of the Following criteria are met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash [fows
and selling the financial assets, and

b. Contractual terms of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debi instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date al fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OC1). However, the Company recopnizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss, On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity
to statement of profit and loss. Interest camed whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument s
reporied as interest income in statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

= Debt instruments at FYTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for calegorization as at amortized cost or as FYTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

. Eisity] I
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments

which are held for trading classificd as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company

may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The

clazsification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classily an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI There 15 no recycling
of the amounts from OC1 to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Dpairmrent of fnanciol gssets

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash Nows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shorfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a_ Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debi
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance g DA
b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
2. Lease receivables under Ind A% 116
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d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

*  Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
*  All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and nsk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. 17 eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL s used. I, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reveris to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-manth ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘other expenses’ in the statement of profil and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments 15 described below:

» Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.c., as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheel. The allowance reduces the net carryving amount. Until
the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from
the gross carrving amount.

& Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

= Debt instruments measured at FYTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the
expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which
remains at fair value, Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset
was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the

‘accumulated impairment amount”

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

D HTFau
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and rewards of the
ownership of the assel.
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b)

The difference between the carrving amount and the amoumt of consideration received /
receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial labilitices
Initial - ! ni

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payvables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company”s financial liabilities include rade and other payables, loans and borrowings other
financial liabilities etc.

Swbsegueem nuagurgment
The measurement of financial liahilities depends on their classification, as described below:

#  Financial linbilities at fair valve through profit or loss

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

# Financial linhilities at amortized cosi

Logns, borrowings, irade payables and other financial fiabilities

After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial labilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into sccount any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition of financial labilites

A financial liability is derecopnised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of 2 new liability. The difference in the respective camying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Financial guarantee coniracts

Financial guaraniee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails 1o make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are dircctly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the ameunt of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Reclassification of financial asscis

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initjadg
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets wiglth
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instruments and financial liabilities. For Mnancial azsets which are debl instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which
is the Mirst day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment
gaing or losses) or interest.

) Difseiting of linancial insiruments

Finarcial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right o offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.2.18  Fair value measarement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participanis at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

* [Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A Tair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account & market participant’s ability 10
generate economic benefits by using the asset in iis highest and best use or by selling it to ancther
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and besl use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available 1o measure fair valoe, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements arc
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
= Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
: o [.‘nmpan}ld:urmm:swhm:runns[ﬂslmuemﬂ.umd between levels in the hierarchy by re-assgsging
Wl:gﬂmu’cm (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurgfieDERETS,
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whalbe) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each
reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and lbilites which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, e Company has determined classes of asseis and liabilities
om the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

22,19 NMNon —current asset held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The sale is considered highly prohable only when the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is
expected within ene year from the date of the classification, Disposal groups classified as held for
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified
a3 held for sale. Assets classified as held for salefdistribution are presented separately in the balance
sheet.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale™ are no longer met, the
disposal group ceases (o be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrving amount before the asset was classified as
held for sale, adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been
classified as held for sale, and (i) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases
to be classified as held for sale. The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the
period when non-current assets held for sale criteria are no longer met,

2.2.20  Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current vear relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50%
of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

2.2.21  Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by
the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and faciors
{including expectations of future events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the
existing circumstances, The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the
reporting, date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions
existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual
results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such
eslimates were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other
assumptions do not tum out 1o be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in
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The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are descnibed below, Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

a.  Allowances for uncollected trade recenvables

Trade receivables do not camy interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables
balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems not be collectible.

b. Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on
all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably
and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can
be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the Company is involved. it is
not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial position of
probability.

e. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets arc based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates, The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the Company’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

d. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect 1o the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in
tnx laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments 1o tax income and expense already recorded. The
Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of
tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority, Such differences of
interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the
respective domicile of the companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of Tuture 1axable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

e. Impairment of non financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds s
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.

21 1 Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company a
5
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lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancel lable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably cerlain 1o be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option 10 terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
]

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options, The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option 1o renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that ¢reate an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
o renew of Lo terminate (e.g., construction of significant leaschold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

g. Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time afler reasonably
estimating its progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

The recognition of revenue requires assessments and judgments to be made on changes in work
scope, claims (compensation, rebates etc,) and other payments o the extent performance obligation
is satisfied and they are probable and are capable of being reasonably measured. For the purpose
of making estimates for claims, the company used the available contractual and historical
imformation.
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN= L43500DL200 TGO 7400
Motes to the Finaneial Statements for the venr ended 3151 March 2023

3 Property, Flant and Equipmaeni

{Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Computers Flant and Machinary Vehicles Tutal
Loross Carrying Amount (Af Costh
Al April'.!ﬂ-ll .42 = = .42
Additions 043 0.45
Disposals’Adjustments - 2
Exchange Gain' Loss - -
At 31st March 2022 LET - = 087
Addditions - 136 4564 125.00|
Disposals’ Adjustments - - - -
Exchange Gain' Logs . - - a
ki 31si March 2023 087 136 d5.64 12887
i - L s
At 1 April 2021 015 = = .25
Depreciation chanee for the year 0.24 0.24
Imprzirmmend
Disposals/ Adiusimends
Exchanoe Gam' Loss
Al 3st March 2022 0,49 = i ,:
Depreciation chanze for the vear 0,05 517 4.08 1240
Impairment - -
Disposals’ Adiustments - -]
Exchange Gain' Loss
At 3lat Mareh 2023 .64 B.I17 4.0% 1L
Net book value
Al 3151 March 2023 .23 74019 41.56 115.%8
Al 31st March 2022 0.38 038

(i} Depreciation i provided based on useful life supported by the techmical evaluation considering business speeific
usage, the consumption pattern of the assets and the past performance of similar assets,

Eammated useful life of assets are as follows;

Class of Assets Useful lives as per Scheduale I (Years) [Uselul life adapted
based on technical
evalugstbon (in years)

Plant and Machinery B-15 1-1%

Computers 346 34

ehicles E-10 E-10




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017G0O1317401
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

4 Other Financial Assets (Non Current)

(Hs. in Lacs)
; As at 3st

Particulars March 2023 As ai 3=t March 2022
Contract As “nnsil aid
Fimancial Asset- Construction Contract 41.770.56 45,962.46
Oithers
Security Deposits 34.77 34 06
Taotal - Other Financial Assets 41,805.33 45,996.52

Financial Assets - Construction contract is the Highway being made by [DHHL under Hybrid Annuity
Model (HAM) (Refer Note 24)
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IRCDN BAVANALG ERE IAVERTD IEFGIWAY LIMITED
CIN. (LR DL I8 TLAM R 7400
Molck oo iber Flaanckal 5 bemonks B fhe vear endod J0s8 March 2013

6.2 Caih gl Caih eiguivalenis

(s, im Laes)
|Particulars A gl Msd Miarch 2023 As gt 3 March 2821
Cash i Baindl =
Balances wills Banks
Farmuarked Funds
= On curreni, acooanis 1R &7 AT
= Hex| Agcounis 4 ¥
= Degposis with crigensl msurity of less then 3 months 1415 08 -
Tasdal 143587 50,87
3 Hank Ealances other than Cach smd Cash equivabest
(R in Ll|:l|
IFarticalars s ol 31sf March 2023 As i 30st March 2022
Ohiber Bank Balances
Depesits with angmal maturity of mone thas 3 moniks bul less 812400 264400
thas |2 sweahs®
Total 124,060 L4600 |

*Inclmdes deponit of Bs 2646 ncs (A5 o1 3151 March D022 Rs 2646 lacs) i under liea wath Pungab National Bask and Rs 3578
Jacs (s o0 318 Wisech 2022 Wiy are earmarked fund a8 por concession ageccimenl masendd with WHAI

b4 (hher Finameial Asseis

(s in Lats)
[Particelars Aus il Bilsk March 2033 As at sk March 2022)
|al Comsidered Giopd
Seoaminy Depndits
- [thers - 0,68
Imfcrest Accrusd on FIDE -l.]JI B
Feooverablk .38 0.3
Contract Assecis:
Fmancinl Asset- Conslitietion Conlemsl THM17 2.41]1.'”'
Imterest Recovewahle on Fimancial Assets EAETE | 1.769.73
Tetal - Other Financial 4.511,72 40T T
Axspls - (Food
|Grand Total - Diler Financisl Chibers 1ETL7I| LT

Fenancial Assets - Constructios conoract is the Highmay being mide by INHHL moaer Hybeid Annuity Moged (HAM) (Refier Mote 24)
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IRCON DAYANAGERE HAVERD HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIMN= US55 D200 7001517400
Motes b the Financial Statcments for the year ended 315 Marel 2023

7 Corrent Tax AsseisfiLiability) (Net)

M, i Lacs)

I["lrli:ull ™

As ot st March
2033

Al Jse March
Fairy

l'axes Paid inchsding TDS & Advance Tax (Met of Provision for Tox)

199, 18

Tixtal

1918

&8 Oiher Currenl Assets

(M im lacs)

s at 3051 Murch Asoal 3l st March
|Parideulars 2% i1
U redl : il
|a) Advamces (Mher than Capital Advanoes

Advanees 1o Consractors sgainst malevial und machinery and oilwrs 030 -
Advance Reoovernbla fram:
- Goods & Services Tax 338160 4,926 10
= Berviee T gl credit
- Buflding cess Recvivable 4024
leneresi Accrued on Income Tk Relund . .
Total - Advances (her than Capital Advanges 343018 4.926.10
s} Dribers
Mepasd Expenses 3958 1742
Tatal - (ihiers 5I_LK 3742
Carand Todal | 3.669.56 | 4.903.51
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U455 D L2001 TGOI31 7400
Motes 1o the Financial Statements for the yvear ended 31t March 2023

10 ther Equity

{Rs. in Lacs)
Parthelars As at 31st M;Er;:;l As al 31st M::}'EI
(a) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance [ 006.23 419.56
Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 2 637.04 SRAGT
Closing Balance 3.643.27 1,006,235
(b} Quasi Equity (Loan From Ireon)
Opening Balance 1.386.00 -
Received During the vear - 1.386.00
|Closing Balance I, 386.00 I, 356,00
(e} Capital Redemption Reserve
Cpening Balance
Add: Transfer for Buy Back of Equity Shares
losing Balance
d} Hems of other comprehensive income
Opening Balance
Foreign Currency Translation {net of tax)
ClnsinE Balance
Corand Total 5.029.27 2.392.23

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves:

{a) Retained Earnings
Retained Eamings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.
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16 Revenue from aperm hons

TROCON DAVANAGERE HAVERT HIGHWAY LINITED
CIN- LRS00 TGOS Y400
Nabes 16 Ehe Finanetl Stpessenis far the yeas ended 31 Maseh J023

[Hs, is Lacs)
For the perisd end Far the e il enidenl
raries sz Mareh 20 31l Murch 2022
Coasirachon Coniract rovenue undior SCA (Palor Mole 14) | 97525 T
b Fovenie
« il Oipemaling Revenve . .
Taisl 1,975,324 TFLTh
17 [hhew Dncoime
fR &
Fawr ghr parrine] wnaded Faor the porssid onid
et st March 2023 Mt M.mzu::ll
Jiwicres Bsmame ;
Imewesn o cimed on molebicn ion slvamocs
Banl Inigesd on Term Dogumii AT 7953
[micres on leceme Tas Redusd 1mn -
Cuher M e |l oo [mcame 0 6& 314
Inieres Income On FA ST L
Tadal A.681,19 J7TRA2
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L]

TRCON FAVANAGERE HAVER] HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U4E588 01201 TE0181 7400
Wobes o Ehe Finameia) Stalemenis far the year emded 3188 March 2003

Related Parry Diselinures

Diaclosure as per Ind AS 3 "Related Perty Dusclosures” are as undier:

i) List ol Hebated Partics
f  Habdieg compasy
lrecs Iniemmionl Lisied
(i} Key Mamgescnt Personmel { KMF)
[vame Designation
Shel Ashok Kumase CGoyal (weel | Igh May 2017 e 100h Oeolser J022) Dheecieds Troam [RCOMN
Shri Parag Yerma {wel 30h December 20321 jo 1 0k Oeiober 2033} Dizesteay freem [RCON
hri Plmeoesd Ahmad (woe§ 2nd Awgest 202 1) Diseciors from IRCON
Wi Ritn Arom (we.C 13th Myy 2021 Dhrectors from [RCOMN
Ehri Mupunthan Begu Gowda (woe . T8t Aprill 2022 10 148 June 2002} [heeclors from IRCDN
Shii Rkt Pamar (w.e T 0151 Jene J00F) Directons from IRCDON
Shri Devendra Komar Sharmn {w.e.l. 10ih Ociober 2022 Diirecions from IRCON
Shni Nagmgouda Havpmanthgowda Patil (w.e. L 1 th Jaly 2008 1o 24¢h Augua 2022) Civied Execubive Officer
Ehni Goutarmn Eumar Mishea (w.o [ Ddth Angust JZE) Execulnve Officer
St blahadeb Mandal {woe. . 158 July 202 1% Chael Femancial OfMicer
Shri Mradeep Kamar (woe . 1 38h April 2022} Company Secretary
b Trassactions with ather relatod partics are as Fallows: (M. im Lacs)
Mature ol lransaction [Same &l related paciy| Nature of relatismship | For the period coded For the period coded
Jls1 March 2023 Jisd March 2027
1) Reimbusenent expemsss 2062 1628
2} Works Coniract a13.71 135
¥ s Aequared under works contract 1Z2E101 -
) Bewt Expense (mclasive of GET) i haorkarias 101 I‘Iz
5} Inloreet an Laan Lirnited Haldng Compamy 367,76 20893
) izt O Mol Advance- Income - -
) Investerent in Equity Shares = 2300
)y Qi Eguity o L8600
o) Loana §3T.00 1,230
¢l Dubstandimg balances with the rolaicd
MNatore ol Eransaclhon Manke af Felaled parly| Matise of relalionship | As a1 30 March 2023 | As a1 30 Mareh 2822
|natance Payable as on reposting date "““I""J._i'l' nd"' ol | vsling Congany 196206 361241
HEi
[vrsccuned ose s o s | tHokting Company 4,713.00 3,874 00
(d) Remuncrtion o Key mansgement personne] i 5 emder (e in Laes)

Druring ile Feriod  |During the Period upio)

5 Ne "

| e upto 31-3-2623 Ha-nn
I {5k wenm employes Beneliis 4T 32 k! 4k
2 |Peat cmployment benclits 176 1M
3 [Sitling fre : .
4 |[Other long-term employee benglits 637 iw
£ | SeadT Wellare - -

TOTAL 5765 [

{e} Terms and conditions of tramsactions with related partics
£} Tramsmetions with related panties nre made on termn equevalent @0 those thad prevail imamm s kength transactions

(i) Cxasianding balaeces ol relmed paeises ot the reporting dale are unszonmed and setiloment occurs Throegh hanking imnsadions.
except the Unsecured boan as mentioned in Mooz Mo 11.1

80




THCON DAVANAGERE HAYERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN= UdS5000 L2201 7TGOI31T400
Motes (o (he Financial statements lor the year ended 3151 March 2023

4 Service Concession Arrangements

Puhblic 1o privale service concession armngements are recorded in sccordance with Appendix "C"- Service Conceision Armangemenls
{Ind AS-1 15), Appendix “C* is applicable if:

a)  The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide
them, mnd 4 whal price; and

k) The Gmntor confrols- through cwnership, beneficial enlitlemenl. of clherwise amy sighilicant residual intercsl in Lhe
inTrastrisciune 1 the end of the term of the arrangement.

If both of the ohove conditions are med simullancousky, o Anancial aseel i recopnized o the extenl thal the operator has an
unconditional contraciuial rght o receive cash or ather linancial assel from or &l the discretion of ithe Grantor for the service,

These Mnancial asseis are infiially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus ather direct
costs directhy atiributable 10 the operation, They ane then staved ot amertized cos at the end of cach Anascial year,

feon Davanagere Haverd Highway Limbed (IDHHL) has emered inbo service comcession amangement with Nuotional Mighway
Authority of India (NHAIL) dated 19-06-2017. in terms of which MHAI {the grantor) has asthorized the company for development,

mainteranee and management of Mutional Highway No, 48 ((d MH-4} including the seclion lrom Km 26000 w Km 338923
{approx. T8.923 Km) on Duavanagere - Haverd Section of Mational Highway Mo, 48 (00d NH-4) in the State of Kamalaka by six-laning

ihereol on design, build, Gnanee. operate ond transler basis . [n terms of the said agrecment IDFHL has an obligation 1o compleie
coastruction of the project of Six laning of Davanagere Haveri section and to keep the project asscls in proper working condilion
including oll projects assels whase livies have expired. The Propeet is under Annuily paticen.

The Concession period shall be 13 years commiencing from the Commercial operation date, At the énd of the concession period, the
asscls will be transfermed back to Mational Highway Authority of India (NHAIL

In cage of malerial breach in e of agreement the MHAL and IrconlMHHL kave rght o terminate the agreement i they are nod able
b cure the event of default in sccondance with such pgresmend.

Commpany has reeognized Mnancial asscl of Rs.44.440.75 Lakhs under service concession agreement uplo the periad ended 3150 March
2023 (3151 March 2022 Rs 48.366,43 lnkhjaler nking into account the receivables due from NHAT on completion of milestone as per
terms of the contrict. The company has recognised sevenue of Ks 197525 Lacs for the poriod ended on 30t March 2023 ([ the
period ended on 3% Manch 2022 Rs 79776 Lakh) on construction of Rosd wnder SCA and Operation Revenue as per Ind AS « 115
related 1o *Revenue from Customers®, The company has recogrized receivable under service concession arrangement and shown
under Other Firancial current Assels which it will receive & per erms ol the conlract based on the completbon of milesione, as on
315t Morch 2023, Company has received Provisional Compleiion certl licate with eilect from May 28, 2021,

Dizchosure in terms of Appendiz D of Ind AS 115
In terms of the disclosure required in Appendix s Ind AR -115 Revenue from Customers, & nolified inoihe companies {Indian
Accounting Standard) rules 2016, the amaount considered in the linoncial stalements up b the balance sheel date are &= folloss:-

{Hs. in Lies)
For the year | For the year
Particulars endbed Jise emded 3 st
Murch, 2023 | Muarch, 2022
|Contract Reveree Recognized 157525 7. 76
Agprepate amosint of cost incermed 1.109.33 1.316.28
Amound of sdvance received rom Client = =
| Aamound of retention by Client = =
""“ﬁ""‘ Loss) mﬂ_,-,m during the perind for exchange of consiruction 675,87 (518.52)
service for o fimoncial assel
]-Gm.umnl due firom Cliend for Contract Works 3,137.02 J 44688
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TROCON BAVANAGERE HAVERD HIGHWAY LINITEDR
O S50 DLEN I TGO F74401
Wotes o the Financial statements for the year ended 3ist March 2003

In Comtingent labilitbes mnd Contimgent Assera:

11 Comlingepd Linbilaties:
{a} Claims against the company nol sekmrwledge ss deba: B, MIL (Proviows Year MILL
{h) Gesrseazes excludeng finnncial punranice Nil (Presdos Year B2 Mil Lnes)

(I} Comlingeat Assets: Ha ML (Previows Year ML)

17 1. Commiimenis:
Estimaiod amouni of conlracts remaining 10 be execwicd on capiial pccount aad other m Ba Labhs (Previcas Year Ra. Mil Lacs)
) Chheer Commitments: Bs 1572085 1skh [Previess Year 16434 53 ki)

11 Segment Beporting:

(i} Ciemeval I nformation

Operating segments are defined ax compancnts of at coterpriss o which discrete Miaancial information is availabic which i aeing evaluaied
regulaaly by the Chiel Opersting Decisian Maker (CODM) in decidisg baw to dlocate resources and assessing performuance. The Board of
Chisectars of the Compasy i the Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODME The Company & engaged in the bisiness of infrassectise
development in the state of Karmstska sod the Chiel Opemiimg Decision Maker (CODM) momson the epcrating resulls of fhe busiocss as a
wnple segnsenl, hence oo sepambe segmend noods 10 b dtichosed in sccondance with 1be requiraments of Ind AS 118

(i} Infarmatian shout geographics] nfarmatisn
As the Campany operates in n single peogrphical scgmeat Le. Isdia betge no separaie geagraphical scpmiont is disclosed

[ Information abosd majped cussamer

Revenie of R 197525 Lakks (P.Y Rs 797,76 lakh) anc derived fmas & singlhe custemer i NHAL which 38 more than 10% of the Company”s
LoRad dev e

100, Interest In other Entities: Bs. ML (Previous ¥ess WL

I3 Disclosare regarding Leases;
(2]} Company as a Lesee

Tht Compmy has no lessing arangement which are nem-cancellable m mavare, Accordingly, no right of use asseis and kease Habibivics have
been recognised by Ehe Compaigy.

The Commpany has tnkea OfTice om lease with loaso somms of 12 momths or more hawever lease can be terminatod on ong montl satice by citker
side therefone Company applies the ‘short-term lese’ recognition exemptions for such lesses willsmd nny peasity

The following arc the mmounts recognised in Statement of peofia asd loss _Rs im Laes]
PFarticulars Faor the Far the period
eniedl
Jsat March 2 Aime Aarch 2022
|Expense relating 1o short-sonm beases (Refer Mot 13) 101 197
() Company as a Lesor
Company has o beasing arrangemssnl & § lesgon,
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF IRCON DAVANGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based
on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 12 May 2023.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not
to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of IRCON Davanagere

Haveri Highway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143 (6)(a)

of the Act.
For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India
Place: New Delhi Dr. Nilo oswami
Dated: 14.07.2023 Director Géneral of Audit

Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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